
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 09, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Christopher McVoy 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Thank you to the City from LWHS Marching Band 

B. Presentation regarding affordable housing program by Frederick James of United 
Hands for Global Impact 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Work Session - July 13, 2021 

B. Special Meeting - July 20, 2021 

C. Regular Meeting - July 20, 2021 

D. Work Session - July 27, 2021 

E. Budget Work Session #3 - July 29, 2021 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Resolution No. 57-2021 – Second Operating Budget Amendment for FY 2021 

B. Payments of Fiscal Year 2020 Invoices 

C. Accept and Approve the Competitive Selection Audit Report 

D. Proclamation declaring September 17-23, 2021 as Constitution Week 

E. Utility Easement by and between Maria Moro along with Gustavo G. Moro and the City 
of Lake Worth Beach 

F. Ratification of an appointment to the CRA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Ordinance No. 2021-11 – Second Reading – amending the candidate qualifying period 



UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Approval of the agreement with the Legal Aid Society of PBC, Inc. for legal aid eviction 
support to benefit Lake Worth Beach residents 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Interlocal Agreement between Palm Beach County and City of Lake Worth Beach for 
utility adjustments for the 6th Ave South over Lake Osborne Drive Roadway project 

B. Agreement with NZ Consultants for planning, zoning and historic preservation 
professional services 

C. Amendments to contracts for building division inspections, plan review, code 
enforcement inspections and building services with C.A.P Government and Hy-Byrd 
Inc. 

D. LWB Fleet Facility – Updated Funding 

E. Discussion regarding using ARPA funds for ads to promote COVID related outreach 
for rental assistance, legal aid, or webinars with doctors and respected members of 
the community 

F. Ordinance No. 2021-12 – First Reading -- providing authority for the issuance of 
taxable pension obligation bonds 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 
 
September 13 - 1st Budget Hearing 
September 21 - Regular Meeting 
September 22 - 2nd Budget Hearing 
September 28 - Electric Utility Meeting 

Draft Agenda - September 21, 2021 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JULY 13, 2021 - 5:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 5:11 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0.00) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes.  Also present were 

Interim City Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and Deputy City Clerk Melissa 

Ann Coyne (via Zoom). 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (0:37) led by Commissioner Christopher McVoy 

 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION: (0:58) 

 

A. Request for Attorney-Client Session (1:01) 

 

B. Overview of available resources by James E. Green, Palm Beach County Community 

Services Director (2:27) 

 

C. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Update (1:41:49) 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (3:45:00) 

The meeting adjourned at 8:03 PM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 7, 2021 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

EDUCATIONAL TASK FORCE INTERVIEWS 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JULY 20, 2021 - 5:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 5:00 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:00) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Robinson and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes.  Also present were 

Interim City Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann 

Coyne (via Zoom).  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (0:18) led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (0:38) 

 

A. Interview and appointment of applicants to the Voices for Lake Worth Beach Schools 

Education Task Force 

 

Interviews of: 

 

Emily Abbott 

Itzel Calderon 

Makayla Clanton 

Deloris Cooper 

Laurie Cotton 

Ashley Federico 

Kelly Kearney 

Kim Limgle 

Mary Lindsey 

Sarah Martin 

Michele May 

Daniel Morgan 

Allan Nosworthy 

Silvi Rotela 

Evan Schoenly 

Jay Silpe 

Jamas Ward 

Victoria Young 

 

Teri Abrams, Vernell Burris, Farah Marcelin, Newtown Osbourne and Eunice Vivar were 

not in attendance. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to appoint 

Emily Abbott, Itzel Calderon, Makayla Clanton, Deloris Cooper, Laurie Cotton, Ashley 

Federico, Kelley Kearney, Kim Limgle, Mary Lindsey, Sarah Martin, Michele May, Daniel 



Pg. 2, Special Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

Morgan, Allan Nosworthy, Silvi Rotela, Evan Schoenly, Jay Silpe, Jamas Ward and Victoria 

Young as members of the Voices for Lake Worth Beach Schools Education Task Force and 

have the Task Force pair up the members with the schools. 

 

Vote: AYES:  Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Herman Robinson, Commissioners Sarah Malega, 

Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

  

ADJOURNMENT: (53:55) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy at 5:57 PM. 

 

Vote: AYES:  Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Herman Robinson, Commissioners Sarah Malega, 

Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 7, 2021 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JULY 20, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:11 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (1:05:03) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 

and Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes.  Also present 

were Interim City Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and Deputy City Clerk 

Melissa Ann Coyne. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (1:05:22) led by Commissioner Christopher 

McVoy. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:06:00) led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: (1:06:24) 

 

In Consent E, Resolution No. 37-2021 - directing the Preparation of the Preliminary Refuse 

Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, the Refuse Assessment would not be changing 

for fiscal ’22; the word increase was not deleted from the final paragraph in the staff report.   

Presentation D, Presentation by Maui Goodbeer of Streetwaves and Dan Volker of Project 

Seahorse on youth potential at pool and tourism potential at pier brought forth by 

Commissioner McVoy, was deleted; there will be a presentation for staff in the near future.  

Consent I, Settlement of FEMA litigation, was removed from the agenda.  New Business item 

D, Resolution No. 31-2021, an amendment to page 198 of the City’s Historic Preservation 

Design Guidelines to allow Low-E coatings with a minimum visible light transmittance (VLT) 

of 60% for glazing in the historic districts, was moved to Unfinished Business item C, New 

Business item L, Approving the use of $50,000 from American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to support a partnership with Legal Aid 

of PBC, Inc. was added to the agenda. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

the agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (1:11:42) there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A.  Presentation to Deborah M. Andrea, former City Clerk, on her retirement (1:11:43) 

B. Proclamation declaring July 2021 as Parks and Recreation Month (1:15:54) 

C. Proclamation recognizing Lake Worth Beach Basketball Team Pride for AAU Memorial 

Day Classic win (1:18:40) 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

D. (deleted) Presentation by Maui Goodbeer of Streetwaves and Dan Volker of Project 

Seahorse on youth potential at pool and tourism potential at pier brought forth by 

Commissioner McVoy 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: (1:25:28) 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (1:36:29) 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (1:56:41) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

the following minutes: 

 

A. Special Meeting - May 11, 2021 

B. Regular Meeting - May 18, 2021 

C. Work Session - May 18, 2021 

D. Special Meeting - May 20, 2021 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

Action:  Direction was given to move to only Action Minutes beginning with the June 1, 2021 meeting. 

CONSENT AGENDA: (2:01:15) (public comment allowed during Public Participation of 

Non-Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

the Consent Agenda. 

A.  Ratification of Resolution No. 36-2021 - IMLS Grant Application 

B. Change Order 02-Final to David Mancini & Sons Inc. for Lake Osborne Estates Watermain 

Improvement Project 

C. Agreement with MAXX Environmental, LLC to provide Annual Pipe Lining Services 

D. Ratification of appointments and reappointments to the various advisory boards 

E. Resolution No. 37-2021 - directing the Preparation of the Preliminary Refuse Assessment 

Roll for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and scheduling the final public hearing for September 13, 

2021 

F. Resolution No. 38-2021 - directing the Preparation of the Preliminary Stormwater 

Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and scheduling the final public hearing for 

September 13, 2021 

G. Resolution No. 39-2021 - establishing the Proposed Tentative Millage Rate for Fiscal Year 

2021-2022 and scheduling the first public hearing for September 13, 2021 and the second 

public hearing for September 22, 2021 

H. Resolution No. 40-2021 - establishing the Proposed Tentative Voter Approved Debt Rate 

for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and scheduling the first public hearing for September 13, 2021 

and the second public hearing for September 22, 2021 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

 
 

I. (deleted) Settlement of FEMA litigation (backup to be provided at the meeting) 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (2:01:29) 

 

A. Ordinance No. 2021-04 – First Reading (Quasi-judicial – continued from June 15, 2021 

meeting) – amending the Official Zoning Map by approving the creation of a Mixed Use 

Planned Development, located at 1715 North Dixie Highway (2:02:17) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-04 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING 

MAP BY APPROVING THE CREATION OF A MIXED USE URBAN PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LOCATED AT 1715 NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY 

CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 2.29 ACRES AS MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A, LOCATED WITHIN THE MIXED USE – DIXIE 

HIGHWAY (MU-DH) ZONING DISTRICT WITH A FUTURE LAND USE 

DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE – EAST (MU-E) SUBJECT TO SPECIFIC 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT B AND CONDITIONS OF 

APPROVAL SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT C; APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT OF 

SIGNIFICANT IMPACT; APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; 

APPROVING DENSITY AND HEIGHT BONUS INCENTIVES THROUGH THE 

CITY’S SUSTAINABLE BONUS INCENTIVE PROGRAM; APPROVING THE 

TRANSFER OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS TO OBTAIN AN ADDITIONAL 10 UNITS 

PER ACRE; APPROVING A MAJOR SITE PLAN FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 

127-UNIT MIXED USE URBAN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDED FOR 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded Commissioner Malega to approve 

Ordinance No. 2021-04 on first reading and set the second reading and public hearing for 

August 17, 2021. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

B. Resolution No. 42-2021 - adopting the final assessment roll for non-ad valorem 

assessments levied for Chronic Nuisance Services and directing that such final assessment 

roll be certified to the Palm Beach County Tax Collector (2:56:04) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 42-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

RELATED TO THOSE NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS WHICH MAY BE 

LEVIED FOR THE COST OF PROVIDING LOT CLEARING, BOARDING AND 

SECURING, AND DEMOLITION SERVICES TO ELIMINATE NUISANCE 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE INCORPORATED 

AREA OF THE CITY; APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2021 AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 

SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution No. 42-2021 adopting the final assessment roll for non-ad valorem assessments 

levied for Chronic Nuisance Services and directing that such final assessment roll be certified 

to the Palm Beach County Tax Collector. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: (2:58:40) 

 

A. Resolution No. 43-2021 – abandoning an approximately 10-foot-wide section of public 

right-of-way (alley) located on the north side of 10th Avenue North between North E Street 

and North F Street (2:58:43) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 43-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

ABANDONING AN APPROXIMATELY 10-FOOT-WIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOCATED BETWEEN LOTS 1, 2, 3, 14, 15, & 16 OF BLOCK 318 IN THE TOWNSITE 

OF LUCERNE, (N/K/A LAKE WORTH BEACH) AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, 

PAGES 29 TO 40 IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, 

FLORIDA SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR RECORDING AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

Resolution No. 43-2021 – abandoning an approximately 10-foot-wide section of public right-

of-way (alley) located on the north side of 10th Avenue North between North E Street and 

North F Street. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

B. Ordinance No. 2021-07 – Second Reading (possible Quasi-judicial) – amending the 

Official Zoning Map by approving the creation of a Residential Urban Planned 

Development (Lake Worth Apartments) on 10th Avenue North between North E Street and 

North F Street (2:59:42) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-07 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING 

MAP BY APPROVING THE CREATION OF A RESIDENTIAL URBAN PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 10TH AVENUE 

NORTH BETWEEN NORTH E STREET AND NORTH F STREET, CONSISTING OF 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

 
 

APPROXIMATELY 0.71 ACRES AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN 

EXHIBIT A, LOCATED WITHIN THE MIXED USE - EAST (MU-E) ZONING 

DISTRICT WITH A FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE – EAST 

(MU-E) SUBJECT TO SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS SET FORTH IN 

EXHIBIT B AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT C; 

APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; APPROVING DENSITY BONUS 

INCENTIVES THROUGH THE CITY’S SUSTAINABLE BONUS INCENTIVE 

PROGRAM; APPROVING A MAJOR SITE PLAN FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 

24-UNIT RESIDENTIAL URBAN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; APPROVING A 

RIGHT-OF-WAY ABANDONMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Ordinance No. 2021-07 amending the Official Zoning Map by approving the creation of a 

Residential Urban Planned Development (Lake Worth Apartments) on 10th Avenue North 

between North E Street and North F Street. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

C. (moved from New Business D) Resolution No. 31-2021 – (continued from the June 15, 

2021 meeting) amending page 198 of the City’s Historic Preservation Design Guidelines 

to allow Low-E coatings with a minimum visible light transmittance (VLT) of 60% for 

glazing in the historic districts (3:08:17) 

  

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 31-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING HISTORIC PRESERVATION DESIGN GUIDELINES AS A 

SUPPLEMENT TO THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION ORDINANCE AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to approve 

Resolution No. 31-2021 amending page 198 of the City’s Historic Preservation Design 

Guidelines to allow Low-E coatings with a minimum visible light transmittance (VLT) of 60% 

for glazing in the historic districts. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

  

NEW BUSINESS: (3:51:54) 

 

A. Ordinance No. 2021-10 – First Reading – amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 

Regulations” regarding changes to floodplain management standards for manufactured 

homes as required by FEMA (3:52:02) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

ORDINANCE 2021-10 - AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AMENDING CHAPTER 23 OF THE LAKE WORTH 

BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATED TO FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT 

STANDARDS FOR MANUFACTURED HOMES AND PROVIDING FOR 

IDENTICAL ELEVATION STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to approve 

Ordinance No. 2021-10 on first reading and schedule the second reading and public hearing 

for the August 3, 2021. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

B. Ordinance No. 2021-05 – First Reading – amending the Future Land Use Map from the 

future land use designation of Mixed Use – East (MU-E) to Public Recreation Open Space 

(PROS) for the property 32 South B Street (3:55:36) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-05 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

THROUGH A SMALL SCALE MAP AMENDMENT FROM THE FUTURE LAND 

USE (FLU) DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE EAST (MU-E) TO THE FLU 

DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE (PROS) ON 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 32 SOUTH B STREET AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED 

IN EXHIBIT A; PROVIDING THAT CONFLICTING ORDINANCES ARE 

REPEALED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

Ordinance No. 2021-05 on first reading and schedule the second reading and public hearing 

for August 3, 2021. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

C. Ordinance No. 2021-06 – First Reading – amending the City’s Official Zoning Map from 

the zoning district of Single Family Residential (SFR) to Public Recreation and Open Space 

(PROS) for the property 32 South B Street (3:59:45) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-06 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING THE CITY’S OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FROM THE ZONING DISTRICT 

OF SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SFR) TO PUBLIC RECREATION AND OPEN 

SPACE (PROS) FOR THE PROPERTY 32 SOUTH B STREET, AS MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; AND PROVIDED FOR 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 



Pg. 7, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

 
 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

Ordinance No. 2021-06 on first reading and to schedule the second reading and public hearing 

for August 03, 2021. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

D. (moved to Unfinished Business C) Resolution No. 31-2021 – (continued from the June 15, 

2021 meeting) amending page 198 of the City’s Historic Preservation Design Guidelines 

to allow Low-E coatings with a minimum visible light transmittance (VLT) of 60% for 

glazing in the historic districts 

 

E. Lease Renewal with FDOT for the Sidewalk Café Permits (4:03:35) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Lease Renewal with FDOT for the Sidewalk Café Permits. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

F. Authorize Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Amendment 3 to Loan Agreement 

DW501731 for the 2-inch watermain phase 4 project (4:08:37) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Amendment 3 to Loan Agreement DW501731 for 

the 2-inch watermain phase 4 project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

G. First Amendment to Standard Agreement for Legal Services with Baker, Donelson, 

Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC. (4:10:50) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

First Amendment to Standard Agreement for Legal Services with Baker, Donelson, Bearman, 

Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega 

and Stokes.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Commissioner McVoy. 

 

H. Discussion regarding city issued for rent sign policy brought forward by Commissioner 

Malega (4:20:48) 

 

Action: Consensus was to research the issue and bring it back for a future meeting. 

 

I. Discussion regarding the city manager and utility director residency requirement brought 

forth by Commissioner Malega (4:30:36) 

 



Pg. 8, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

Action: Consensus was reached to leave the ordinance as it was regarding the residency requirements. 

 

J. Discussion regarding mini roundabouts brought forth by Commissioner Stokes (4:45:25) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to extend the 

meeting until 11 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

Action: Consensus was to have a resolution supporting a TPA-funded a study regarding traffic calming 

on Federal Highway to present to FDOT. 

 

K. Designation of voting delegate for the business meeting during the 2021 Florida League of 

Cities’ (FLC) 95th annual conference in Orlando, Florida on August 12-14, 2021 (5:04:27) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

appointment of Mayor Resch as the voting delegate for the Florida League of Cities Annual 

Business Meeting at the Florida League of Cities annual conference on August 12-14, 2021 in 

Orlando, Florida. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

L. (added) Approving the use of $50,000 from American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to support a partnership with Legal 

Aid of PBC (5:06:20) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to extend the 

meeting until midnight. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

the use of up to $50,000 from American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds for contracts to be executed to support a partnership with Legal Aid 

Society of PBC, Inc. and Florida Rural Legal Services for eviction prevention. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:  

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not provide a report. 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: (6:05:50) 

 

Interim City Manager Ruiz provided the following report: 



Pg. 9, Regular Meeting, July 20, 2021 

 

 
 

 sought direction for an ordinance to prevent the flying of drones to protect wildlife in city 

parks 

 asked for direction regarding changing the procurement code policy to give preference to 

women, minorities and veterans 

Action:  Consensus was to move forward on both ordinances. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

Tuesday, July 27 – Work Session followed by Electric 

Thursday, July 29 - Budget Work Session #3 

Monday, August 2 - Work Session 

Tuesday, August 3 – Regular 

 

Draft Agenda - August 3, 2021 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (6:17:35) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to adjourn 

the meeting at 11:21 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 7, 2021 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 

 



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION - ELECTRIC RATES 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JULY 27, 2021 - 5:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 5:01 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:00) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy (via Zoom) and Kimberly Stokes.  Also 

present were Interim City Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City 

Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne (via Zoom). 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (0:39) led by Commissioner Sarah Malega 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION (1:06) 

A. Electric Cost of Service Study 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:24:56) 

The meeting adjourned at 6:26 PM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 9, 2021 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION BUDGET WORK SESSION #3 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

THURSDAY, JULY 29, 2021 - 5:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 5:05 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:00) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy (via Zoom) and Kimberly Stokes.  Also 

present were Interim City Manager Juan Ruiz and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne (via Zoom). 

 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION (1:09) 

 

A. Fiscal Year 2022 Budget – Enterprise Funds Budgets 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (2:03:39) 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:09 PM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 9, 2021 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Golf and Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 57-2021 – Second Operating Budget Amendment for FY 2021 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution No. 57-2021 authorizes a budget amendment to increase the budget for the Golf 
Fund to purchase batteries for the golf carts. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Due to Covid-19, the demand of golf carts increased due to the “one person per golf cart policy.”  
For example, summertime operations normally have an average of 25 carts in use daily, 
however this year the average was closer to 70.  As a consequence of this increase demand, 
the batteries were drained and as such, they are now in need of replacement.   

Also, as consequence of COVID, the number of golf rounds also increased which favorably 
impacted merchandise sales.   

Because revenues have exceeded budget, the intent of this budget amendment is to increase 
the revenue appropriation to cover the cost of the additional batteries.  

 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 57-2021 – budget amendment to purchase new 
golf cart batteries from the Golf Fund. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution 57-2021 
Exhibit A 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 26,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 26,000 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account Description Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

404-
8030-
575.46-
30 

Repair & 
Maintenance/Golf 
Carts 

N/A 18,000 0 21,000 21,000 0 

404-8030-
575.52-75 

Operating 
Supplies/Merchandise 

N/A 37,230 77.90 5,000 5,000 77.90 

 



57-2021 1 

 2 

 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 57-2021, A GENERAL APPROPRIATION 4 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL 5 

CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, MAKING SEPARATE 6 

AND SEVERAL BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND CORRESPONDING 7 

APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY’S NECESSARY OPERATING 8 

EXPENSES, THE USES AND EXPENSES OF THE VARIOUS FUNDS 9 

AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 10 

BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; 11 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 12 

 13 

 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) previously adopted 14 

the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Annual Operating Budget pursuant to Resolution No. 37-2020 on 15 

September 24, 2020;  16 

 WHEREAS, the City finds it is necessary and essential to amend the FY 2021 Annual 17 

Operating Budget as set forth in this Resolution; and 18 

 WHEREAS, adoption of the FY 2021 Annual Operating Budget amendments set 19 

forth herein serves a valid public purpose. 20 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 21 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 22 

 23 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and 24 

correct and are hereby incorporated into this Resolution. 25 

 26 

Section 2. As hereinafter stated in this Resolution, the term “fiscal year” shall mean the 27 

period of time beginning October 1, 2020, and ending and including September 30, 2021. 28 

 29 

Section 3 The funds and available resources and revenues that are set out and 30 

attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, be, and the same hereby 31 

are, appropriated to provide the monies to be used to pay the necessary operating and 32 

other expenses of the respective funds and departments of the City for the fiscal year. 33 

 34 

Section 4. The sums, which are set out in Exhibit “A” and herein incorporated by 35 

reference, listed as operating and other expenses of the respective funds and 36 

departments of the City, be, and the same hereby are, appropriated and shall be paid out 37 

of the revenues herein appropriated for the fiscal year. 38 

 39 

Section 5. The revenues and the expenses for which appropriations are hereby made, 40 

all set forth above, shall be as set out in the Amended City of Lake Worth Operating 41 

Budget for the fiscal year as attached in Exhibit “A”. 42 

 43 

Section 6. The sums set out in Exhibit “A” are hereinbefore incorporated by reference 44 

and based upon departmental estimates prepared by the City Manager and the Finance 45 



Pg. 2, Reso. 57-2021 

 

Director, shall be, and the same hereby are, fixed and adopted as the amended budget 46 

for the operation of the City and its other enterprises for the fiscal year. 47 

 48 

Section 7. Except as amended in Exhibit “A” hereto, the remainder of the FY 2021 49 

Annual Operating Budget for the fiscal year remains in full force and effect. 50 

 51 

Section 8. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 52 

 53 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner _________, 54 

seconded by Commissioner _____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 55 

was as follows: 56 

 57 

Mayor Betty Resch 58 

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 59 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 60 

Commissioner Christopher McVoy 61 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 62 

 63 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 17th 64 

day of August 2021. 65 

 66 

 67 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 68 

 69 

 70 

By: __________________________ 71 

Betty Resch, Mayor 72 

 73 

ATTEST: 74 

 75 

 76 

__________________________ 77 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 78 



City of Lake Worth Beach

Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Appropriation

Golf Fund

Account Description  FY 2020 Budget 

 FY 2021 Budget 

Adopted 

 FY 2021 Budget 

Amendment 

 FY 2021 Budget 

Amended 

Charges for Services 1,215,325.00       1,243,500.00        26,000.00             1,269,500.00          

Investment Income -                       -                        -                        -                          

Rents -                       -                        -                        -                          

Donations -                       10,000.00             -                        -                          

Other Income 1,000.00              -                        -                        -                          

Transfers -                       -                        -                        -                          

Use of Fund Balance -                       -                        -                        -                          

Total Sources of Funds 1,216,325.00       1,253,500.00        26,000.00             1,269,500.00          

Golf Course 1,185,540.78       1,222,501.57        26,000.00             1,248,501.57          

Other / Transfers 19,490.00            30,000.00             -                        -                          

Total Uses of Funds 1,205,030.78       1,252,501.57        26,000.00             1,248,501.57          

-                       -                        -                          

Net Sources over Uses 11,294.22            998.43                  -                        20,998.43               

FUND 404 - Golf Fund

Summary of Revenue and Expenses
SOURCES OF FUNDS

USES OF FUNDS

1 of 1



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 7, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Payments of Fiscal Year 2020 Invoices 

 
SUMMARY: 

Authorization for payment of outstanding invoices for goods and services provided in Fiscal Year 
2020 not paid prior to the closure of the accounts for the fiscal year. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Financial Services Division received invoices for goods and services provided to the City 
Departments during Fiscal Year 2020. Though the goods and services were approved and 
provided for in Fiscal Year 2020 the invoices for said goods and services provided by Vendors 
were not paid prior to the Fiscal Year 2020’s books being closed.  As such, the payment for the 
services requires authorization of the use of Fiscal Year 2021 funds to cover the expenditures. 

The item provides for the necessary authorization by the City Commission to utilize Fiscal Year 
2021 funds in the amount of $1,878.19 to cover the expenses incurred and goods and services 
received in Fiscal Year 2020.   

 
DIRECTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove authorization of the use of Fiscal Year 2021 funds to pay for 
expenditures and services incurred in Fiscal Year 2020. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Invoice List 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 1,878.19 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 1,878.19 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 See attached spreadsheet.  



Department DATE Invoice Number PO # GL Account Amount Company Name

WATER 8/13/2020 21751020 178288 402-7010-533.44-20 $864.86 CANON
ELECTRIC 7/31/2020 8050001 181193 401-6031-531.46-54 $847.63 NEXAIR
IT 2/15/2019 902798195 179170 510-1520-519-47-00 $165.70 CANON

$1,878.19



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Internal Audit 

TITLE: 

Accept and Approve the Competitive Selection Audit Report 

 
SUMMARY: 

Audit performed per Internal Audit Plan. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In accordance with the Internal Audit Department’s 2021 Annual Audit Plan, an audit of the 
Procurement Division (Finance Department) Competitive Selection Process has been 
completed. During the month of July 2021, the City’s Internal Auditor distributed and reviewed 
the report with each member of the City Commission. The report was previously reviewed by 
the client department and the Interim City Manager. A follow-up audit will be conducted in 2022 
to ensure audit recommendations are implemented. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to accept and approve the Competitive Selection Audit Report. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS,  September 17, 2021, marks the 234th anniversary of the drafting of the 

Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional 

Convention; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Garcilaso de la Vega Chapter of the Daughters of the American 

Revolution has worked in our community since 1958 heightening 

awareness and respect for our great American heritage; and 

 

WHEREAS,  All people within the bounds of the United States of America, whether 

citizens or visitors, enjoy the protection of their individual rights to an 

extent unparalleled on the face of the earth since recorded history, but 

these rights also imply individual responsibility; and 

 

WHEREAS,  It is proper for all people to reflect on the blessings of liberty afforded 

them in the United States as guaranteed by the Constitution, and it is 

proper that official recognition be accorded to this expression of the 

foundation of our freedoms that set America apart from every other 

nation; and  

 

WHEREAS,  The City of Lake Worth Beach honors the blessings of Liberty and the 

foundation of Freedoms guaranteed by the United States Constitution 

that so define our City's proud history and guide our promising future. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, BETTY RESCH, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 

of the City of Lake Worth Beach and on behalf of the City Commission, do hereby proclaim: 

 
SEPTEMBER 17-23, 2021 

as 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 

 
and ask all residents to reaffirm the ideals that the Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by 

vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our liberties, 

remembering that lost rights may never be regained. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Lake 

Worth Beach,  Florida, to be affixed hereto this 9th day of September, 2021. 

  
____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 
_______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: August 17, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Utility Easement by and between Maria Moro along with Gustavo G. Moro and the City of Lake 
Worth Beach 

 
SUMMARY: 

Maria and Gustavo Moro, owners of 302 N. Lakeside Dr., will dedicate a Utility Easement to the 
City of Lake Worth Beach in accordance with the conditions of approval established in the site 
plan review and building permit.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The property 302 N Lakeside Dr. is building a new single-family home at the location which 
incorporates space from 3rd Ave N right of way that was previously abandoned.  The City agreed 
to abandon 3rd Ave N right of way by Resolution 38-92 dated August 17, 1992.  The north 20 
feet of the right of way was quit claim deeded to this property.  During a recent site plan review, 
it was discovered that the former public right of way has City utilities that cross east/west through 
the space.  The City reviewed the property boundary survey and performed a title search and 
could not locate records of easements that would allow the City unrestricted access to these 
utilities. 

This easement dedication grants the City a perpetual, unrestricted and nonexclusive easement 
over these utilities.  In addition, the property owners have authorized a consent agreement with 
the City which recognizes that the City may need to remove some improvements such as fences 
and/or driveways to access the utilities for maintenance.  In the event that the City needs to 
remove an improvement such as a fence or driveway in the easement, the City is not responsible 
for the replacement or the cost of doing so.     

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Utility Easement between Maria and Gustavo Moro and the 
City of Lake Worth Beach  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Utility Easement Dedication 
Easement Consent 
Map 



Return to: 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
City Clerk 
7 North Dixie Hwy. 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 34460 

UTILITY EASEMENT 

THIS UTILITY EASEMENT is made this __ day of 20 _, by and between 
("Grantor") and CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, a Florida 

municipal corporation ("City"). 

WITNESS ETH 

WHEREAS, the Grantor is the owner of property generally located at 3 MN. ~ l'cli~)f'Lake 
Worth Beach, Florida, and as legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the 
"Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires an unrestricted and nonexclusive easement for public utility purposes through 
the Property as described and mapped in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the 
"Easement Area); and 

WHEREAS, the public utilities to be placed in the Easement Area may provide services to and from the 
Property and other properties which may or may not abut and be contiguous to the Easement Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantor is willing to grant such easement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and other valuable consideration, 
the sufficiency and receipt of which is acknowledged by Grantor and the City, the Grantor grants unto the 
City, its licensees, agents, successors and assigns: 

A perpetual, unrestricted and nonexclusive easement in, over, under, through, upon and across the Easement 
Area for the purpose of providing utility services to and from properties or lands or maintain the same, 
which may include the Property, also for the City to provide utility service to properties which may not be 
contiguous to the Easement Area, including the right to lay, or cause to be laid, and to maintain utility pipes, 
mains, appurtenances and devices; to maintain, repair, rebuild, operate and control utility transmission lines; 
the right to clear said Easement Area and keep it clear of brush, trees, and permanent structures and fire 
hazards; together with all rights of ingress and egress necessary for the full and complete use, occupation, 
and enjoyment of the Easement Area hereby granted, and all rights and privileges incident thereto; and, the 
permanent, full and free right and authority to own, construct, operate, maintain, repair, install, rebuild and 
replace utility facilities within the Easement Area. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD the said Easement, unto the City, its licensees, agents, successors and assigns 
forever. It being expressly understood, however, that in the event the City, its licensees, successors and 
assigns, abandons or vacates the easement herein granted, that the same shall revert back to Grantor, its 
heirs, successors or assigns. 



By accepting this Easement, the City agrees: (a) to perform all work undertaken by the City within the 
Easement Area in a good and workmanlike manner and to promptly complete all work within the Easement 
Area; (b) to restore any of the Property disturbed by work undertaken by the City for purposes of 
construction, removal, demolition and/or maintenance to its condition that existed prior to the 
commencement of such work; ( c) to not unreasonably interfere with the use of the Property by Gran tor or 
any of Grantor's tenants, invitees or guests; and (d) to be responsible for all costs associated with the City's 
construction, removal, demolition and/or maintenance pursuant to this Easement. 

Signed, sealed and delivered 
In the presence of: 

"' 

\,)\.{.�� 
Signature of Witness 

'I"· 

Printed Name of Witness 

�,{2.f��J, 
1gnature of Witness 

��e�huJ..W 
Printed Name of Witness 

STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF ft-. VY'<J�o<-,J, )

[Corporate Seal] 

A��--. VICKI LE£ WILSOH {tf�\ Not,ry Public - Stitt of Florldl
tWJi Commission , HH moz 
"····,!:!..�·-/ My Comm. Expires Jul 22, 2024 

Bondff thrOUjh Nitlonil NoWy Aun. 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledge�'-
before me this day of 

________ _, 20 _, by (.�-\,�·w3 �l\or� .\-\\\,;�-;(w�?1's(J5ersonally kno� me or who has 
produced as 1dentificatlon and who did n�e an ea�� 

Notary Public 

The City of Lake Worth Beach accepted the foregoing Easement on ________ , 20 _. 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 

Melissa Coyne, City Clerk Christy J. Goddeau, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT “A”
Legal Description of Property

302 N Lakeside Drive 
Lake Worth Beach

Parcel Control Number: 38-43-44-21-15-430-0010

Legal Description: TOWN OF LAKE WORTH LT 1 BLK 430 &  
N 20 FT OF ABND 3RD AVE NO LYG S OF & ADJ THERETO







grhoads
Text Box
B









38434421154300010

Palm Beach County
None

July 29, 2021
0 0.0095 0.0190.00475 mi

0 0.015 0.030.0075 km

1:576

 
 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Fiscal Impact Analysis: N/A 
CRA Membership Board Log 
Board application (will be added to the backup by the meeting) 

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Commission 

TITLE: 

Ratification of an appointment to the CRA 

 
SUMMARY: 

Ratification of the appointment of Caroline Glass Shamsi-Basha to the CRA. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On February 5, 2013, the Commission adopted an ordinance amending the board member 
appointment process to allow for the selection of board members by individual elected officials.  
In accordance with the ordinance, the board appointments would be effective upon ratification 
by the Commission as a whole. The following appointment is requested to be ratified. 

 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Commissioner Kim Stokes’ appointment of Caroline Glass Shamsi-Basha to the Community 
Redevelopment Agency for a term ending on August 21, 2025.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Commissioner Kim Stokes’ appointment of Caroline Glass Shamsi-
Basha to the Community Redevelopment Agency for a term ending on August 21, 2025 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 



VOLUNTEER
ADVISORY BOARD

APPLICATION
BOARD/S YOU ARE APPLYING TO BE

ON
• Community Redevelopment Agency *

NAME Caroline Glass Shamsi-Basha

RESIDENCE ADDRESS 503 N K St
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460
United States

UPLOAD PROOF OF RESIDENCY • 2E994C39-35F8-4F8F-A552-C283B722254E.jpeg

DO YOU HAVE A DIFFERENT MAILING
ADDRESS?

No

PHONE (205) 394-9670

EMAIL Carolinedgsb@gmail.com

ARE YOU A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED
STATES?

Yes

ARE YOU A REGISTERED PALM BEACH
COUNTY VOTER?

Yes

ARE YOU A REGISTERED LAKE WORTH
VOTER?

Yes

HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN A
RESIDENT OF LAKE WORTH BEACH?

Since January 2021

LIST ALL PROPERTIES OWNED AND/OR
BUSINESS INTERESTS IN LAKE WORTH

503 N K St - single family home

WHAT IS YOUR OCCUPATION? Urban planner, adjunct professor

EMPLOYER? Town of Lantana

BUSINESS ADDRESS: (CRA BOARD
ONLY)

504 Greynolds Circle
Lantana, FL 33462
United States

ARE YOU CURRENTLY SERVING ON
ANY CITY ADVISORY BOARD?

No

HAVE YOU EVER SERVED ON A CITY OF
LAKE WORTH BOARD?

No

DO YOU SERVE ON ANY BOARDS IN
FLORIDA, OR ARE YOU AN ELECTED OR

APPOINTED STATE, COUNTY, OR
MUNICIPAL OFFICE HOLDER, OR PALM

BEACH COUNTY EMPLOYEE?

No

HIGH SCHOOL Hillcrest High School

DATE OF GRADUATION 05/20/2011

COLLEGE Birmingham-Southern College

DATE OF GRADUATION 12/06/2014

WORK EXPERIENCE I currently serve as Assistant Development Services Director in
Lantana, FL. Prior, I was a planner for City of West Palm Beach.
Please see attached resume for more information and a detailed
history.

INTEREST/ACTIVITIES Reading, traveling, Alabama football, painting, taking my Basset
Hound Olive to Lake Woof Dog Park

1 / 2

https://portal.lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/49-b9c5631480ef2db16de247be08ac461a/2021/08/2E994C39-35F8-4F8F-A552-C283B722254E.jpeg
mailto:Carolinedgsb@gmail.com


COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT I am involved in various urban planning related groups in Palm
Beach County. I previously served as a board member for the
Congress for New Urbanism WPB Chapter. My husband and I are
interested in local politics and participate in community events
when possible. I also teach community college geography courses
and am engaged in independent study to learn more about Florida
Friendly Landscaping and design.

6. A - WHY DO YOU DESIRE TO SERVE
ON THIS BOARD (FIRST PREFERENCE)

I am extremely interested in serving on this board. I have dedicated
my time to studying a field I am passionate about and work as a
public servant in daily life. I feel my career path has prepared me
well to make informed decisions that can better my community. On
a personal level, I engage with the built environment in the CRA
district on a daily basis and see a lot of potential growth in my
immediate community.

CONSENT ✔ I agree to the privacy policy.
I understand the responsibilities associated with being a board/committee
member, and I have adequate
time to serve if appointed.
I have read the attached Ordinance No. 2010-29 and Article XIII (Palm Beach
County) Code of Ethics and
understand the policy on the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of Ethics. Within 30
days after appointment, I
understand that I am required to participate in Ethics Training and submit an
Acknowledgement of Receipt
form to the City Clerk’s Office in order to continue to serve on my appointed
board.
*THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FOR ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE SIGNED
ABOVE.
*THIS APPLICATION IS NOT VALID WITHOUT APPLICANT’S PROOF OF
RESIDENCY.

SIGNATURE Caroline Glass Shamsi-Basha

2 / 2



 

 

Page 1 of 2 - 5/17/21 

 

           
               COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

Four-Year Terms 

 

MEMBERS                                                             APPOINTED                    PHONE             ETHICS TRAINING               TERM EXPIRES 

  

Brendan Lynch - CHAIR                                   05/05/2015  C: 561-386-1703                   YES 08/21/2023 

920 South Lakeside Drive 

blynch@plastridge.com  

(Mayor’s Appointment) 

 

Carla Blockson                                                  05/04/2021   C: 561-628-2576  07/31/2024 

1802 Pierce Drive 

blocksonpc@yahoo.com  

(Vice Mayor’s Appointment - District 4) 

 

Mark Rickards – VICE CHAIR                           09/19/2017  C: 561-214-5032                   YES   08/21/2025 

2508 Lake Osborne Drive 

Mark.rickards@kimley-horn.com  

(District 1 Appointment) 

 

Andrew Bartlett                                                 11/05/2019           C: 404-7882062                   YES 08/21/2022 

211 North L Street 

Drewbartlett135@gmail.com  

(Commissioner District 2 Appointment) 

 

Tom Copeland                                                   06/18/2019          C: 561-601-5036                               YES 08/21/2021 

1605 South Palmway 

tommycopeland@me.com  

(District 3 Appointment) 

 

Leah Foertsch                                                      05/20/2014 C: 305-299-3025                    YES 08/21/2025 

1421 N. O Street 

Leah.foertsch@gmail.com 

(District 4 Appointment – Vice Mayor) 

 

Brent Whitfield                                                   01/16/2018  H: 561-329-1797                    YES 08/21/2022 

133 Duke Drive 

bwhitfield@chenmoore.com  

(Mayor’s Appointment) 

 

Executive Director: Joan Oliva - 561-493-2550 - joliva@lakeworth.org 

Commission Liaison: Mayor Betty Resch - 561-586-1735 – bresch@lakeworthbeachfl.gov  

 

Responsible for formulating and implementing projects that are consistent with the Lake Worth Redevelopment Plan to assist 

in revitalizing and redeveloping portions of the City of Lake Worth Beach. 

 

 

mailto:blynch@plastridge.com
mailto:blocksonpc@yahoo.com
mailto:Mark.rickards@kimley-horn.com
mailto:Drewbartlett135@gmail.com
mailto:tommycopeland@me.com
mailto:Leah.foertsch@gmail.com
mailto:bwhitfield@chenmoore.com
mailto:joliva@lakeworth.org
mailto:bresch@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 

 

Page 2 of 2 - 5/17/21 

 

 

 

 

 

Established by Resolution No. 47-89, effective 7/3/89. Florida Statute 163.356 (3) (b), Any person may be appointed as 

commissioner if he or she resides or is engaged in business, which means owning a business, practicing a profession, or 

performing a service for compensation, or serving as an officer or director of a corporation or other business entity so engaged, 

within the area of operation of the agency, which shall be coterminous with the area of operation of the county or municipality, 

and is otherwise eligible for such appointment under this part. Ordinance No. 93-2, effective 2/13/93, to consist of seven 

members appointed by City Commission.  Ordinance No. 2008-14, effective 7/10/08, amended attendance requirements:  if 

any member of the board shall fail to be present at three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled meetings or at twenty (20) 

percent of the regularly scheduled meetings of the board held within any 12-month period, the city clerk shall schedule the 

matter for hearing before the city commission. 

 

Effective May 1, 2013, Chapter 2013-36 FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORMS ARE REQUIRED.  

Meeting Schedule:  Second Tuesday of every month at the Hatch located 1121 Lucerne Avenue at 6:00 p.m. 

 

SECRETARY:   Emily Theodossakos, 561-493-2550 

 

 

 

 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2021-11 – Second Reading – amending the candidate qualifying period 

 
SUMMARY: 

Ordinance No. 2021-11 proposes to amend the candidate qualifying period to begin at noon on 
the second Tuesday in November and end at noon on the fourth Tuesday in November  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In July 2021, the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections (SOE) requested that cities 
change their qualifying periods for the March 2022 municipal elections to accommodate the 
new 95-day rule for vote-by-mail ballots. Specifically, the SOE is requesting that qualifying 
periods end no later than the first Friday in December in 2021 in order for her office to timely 
prepare and mail out the vote-by-mail ballots.   

The City’s current end date for qualifying for the March 2022 election is December 14, 2021, 
which would not meet the SOE’s requested deadline. Accordingly, the proposed ordinance 
would change the qualifying period to commence on noon of the second Tuesday in November 
and conclude at noon on the fourth Tuesday in November. 

The ordinance passed unanimously on first reading at the August 17, 2021 Commission 
meeting. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2021-11 amending the candidate qualifying period. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Letter from SOE 
Ordinance 2021-11 









2021-11 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-11 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 3 
FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 2-14.1 OF CHAPTER 2 OF THE CODE 4 
OF ORDINANCES REGARDING CANDIDATE QUALIFYING PERIOD; 5 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN 6 
EFFECTIVE DATE 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, under section 2-14.1 of the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of 9 

Ordinances, the qualifying period for the March 2022 municipal election would end on the 10 
second Tuesday in December 2021; and 11 

 12 
WHEREAS, the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections (SOE) has requested 13 

that municipalities change their qualifying periods to end no later than the first Friday in 14 
December in order to allow the SOE to comply with the time requirement for preparing 15 
and mailing out the vote-by-mail ballots; and 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, this ordinance proposes to change the City’s qualifying period to 18 

commence at noon on the second Tuesday in November and end at noon on the fourth 19 
Tuesday in November in order to comply with the SOE’s request; and  20 

 21 
WHEREAS, the Commission finds amending the qualifying period as set forth in 22 

this ordinance serves a valid public purpose. 23 
 24 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 25 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 26 
 27 
Section 1.  The above recitals are incorporated as true and correct findings of the City of 28 
Lake Worth Beach. 29 
 30 
Section 2.   Section 2-14.1 of the Code of Ordinances is amended to read as follows:  31 
 32 

Chapter 2 33 
 34 

ADMINISTRATION 35 
 36 

*   *   * 37 
 38 

 39 
ARTICLE II. ELECTIONS 40 

 41 
Sec. 2-14.1.  Candidate qualifying period. 42 
 43 
 Candidates for Mayor or City Commissioner shall file such papers and pay such 44 
fees as may be required by law with the City Clerk no earlier than noon on the last second 45 
Tuesday in November, nor later than noon on the second fourth Tuesday in December 46 
November of the preceding calendar year in which the election is to be held. 47 
 48 
Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or 49 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2021-11 

 
of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and 51 
to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable. 52 
 53 
Section 4.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict be and the same are hereby 54 
repealed. 55 
 56 
Section 5.  Section 2 of this ordinance shall be codified. 57 
 58 
Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after passage. 59 
 60 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 61 
McVoy, seconded by Commissioner Malega, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 62 
as follows: 63 

 64 
Mayor Betty Resch AYE 65 
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson AYE 66 
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 67 
Commissioner Christopher McVoy AYE 68 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 69 

 70 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 71 

17th day of August 2021. 72 
 73 

 74 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by Commissioner 75 

______________, seconded by _______________, and upon being put to a vote, the 76 
vote was as follows: 77 

 78 
Mayor Betty Resch  79 
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson  80 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  81 
Commissioner Christopher McVoy  82 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 83 

 84 
 85 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on second reading on 86 

the ____ day of ___________ 2021. 87 
 88 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 89 
 90 
 91 

By: ______________________________ 92 
Betty Resch, Mayor 93 

ATTEST: 94 
 95 
 96 
____________________________ 97 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 98 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Approval of the agreement with the Legal Aid Society of PBC, Inc. for legal aid eviction support 
to benefit Lake Worth Beach residents 

 
SUMMARY: 

As part of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, the City will be receiving Coronavirus State 
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. The initial deposit of the funds is expected before the end of 
Fiscal Year 2021. The eviction moratorium was to sunset on July 31, 2021, but has been 
extended to September 30, 2021. The City would like to enter into a contract for legal aid eviction 
prevention support to benefit Lake Worth Beach residents using a portion of these funds.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
The Federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) issued an order preventing 
evictions that went into effect September 4, 2020. The final extension will expire on September 
30, 2021.  

The City is seeking to engage in a contractual partnership to benefit Lake Worth Beach residents 
in need of legal representation and services for eviction prevention.  The use of funds was 
approved unanimously at the August 3, 2021 commission meeting.  The item is to approve the 
contract with the Legal Aid Society of PBC, Inc.  

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve the agreement with the Legal Aid Society of PBC, Inc. for legal aid eviction 
prevention and support to benefit Lake Worth Beach residents. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement 
Exhibit A 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $50,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

***-****-
***.34-50 

Contractual Services       

        

 



 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH  

SUB-GRANT AGREEMENT  

 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made as of the _______ day of ______________, 

2021, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida Municipal Corporation, whose 

mailing address is 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 (“City”) and Legal Aid 

Society of Palm Beach County, Inc., a not for profit corporation authorized to do business in the 

State of Florida, whose mailing address is 423 Fern Street, Suite 200, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

(“Legal Aid”), whose Federal Tax ID is 59-6046994. 

 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Public Law No. 

117-2) (“ARPA”) was enacted into law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has been notified that it will receive funding to implement ARPA; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has decided to contract with Legal Aid, as a sub-grantee under ARPA, 

to provide assistance to tenants who reside in Lake Worth Beach Beach and who are at risk of being 

evicted (“the Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Legal Aid has agreed to be a sub-recipient of ARPA funds from the City and to 

properly account for the expenditure of said funds. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, 

the City and Legal Aid agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1 – SCOPE OF SERVICES  

Legal Aid agrees to provide legal assistance services under the American Rescue Plan (ARPA) 

to eligible Lake Worth Beach Beach tenants experiencing the risk of eviction and/or homelessness, as 

set forth in the attached 2021 Tenant Legal Assistance Program Scope of Work and Services (Exhibit 

“A”), and in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2 – COMPENSATION 

A. The City will pay Legal Aid $550 for each unit of unduplicated eviction 

representation for t e n a n t s  f o r  A R P A  eligible Lake Worth Beach Beach residents, up 

to a total of 75 units, for a total of $41,250. 

 

B. Legal Aid will present, on a quarterly basis, five 5 workshops for landlords to assist in 

preventing evictions, assisting in establishing a cooperative relationship between landlords and 

tenants and to educate landlords regarding small business economic assistance programs to assist 

in preventing evictions.  The City will pay Legal Aid $300 for each such workshop, up to a total 

of $1,500. 

 

C. Legal Aid will present, on a quarterly basis, five (5) workshops for tenants to assist in 

preventing evictions, assisting in establishing a cooperative relationship between landlords and 

tenants, and to educate tenants regarding household assistance programs to assist in preventing 

evictions.  The City will pay Legal Aid $300 for each such workshop, up to a total of $1,500. 



 

 

2 

  

D. The City will reimburse Legal Aid, up to a total of $5,750 for costs incurred in 

defending eviction proceedings, including: court costs; court reporter fees; subpoena fees; and 

similar fees, incurred in representing tenants as set forth in Section 2A. 

 

E. The total compensation to be paid to Legal Aid under this Agreement (including all 

amendments thereto) shall not exceed $50,000 unless an amendment to this Agreement is approved 

by the City Commission and executed by the Mayor and City Clerk.  However, this is a non-exclusive 

Agreement and the City does not guarantee any level or amount of services hereunder or that the City 

will not terminate this Agreement before all services are utilized. The City’s obligation to make 

payments to Legal Aid under the Agreement is limited to eligible ARPA payments received by the 

City. 

 

SECTION 3 – TERMINATION 

 Either the City or the Legal Aid may terminate this Agreement at any time upon written notice 

to the other. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights, obligations, and liabilities of 

the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to termination. 

 
 

SECTION 4 – SUB-GRANTEE’S OBLIGATIONS 

As an ARPA Sub-Grantee, Legal Aid agrees to comply with ARPA Rules, Regulations and  

Requirements.  Any and all notifications, reports or other documentation shall be prepared and 

timely submitted to the City in order for the City to timely provide such notifications, reports or 

other documentation to comply with ARPA.  All terms and conditions of ARPA Funding applicable 

to the City are applicable and enforceable by the City against Legal Aid. 

 

The Project is being funded in whole by the American Rescue Plan Act.  The parties anticipate 

that the City will be entering into a contract for the ARPA funds, which includes the Requirements 

for Federally Funded Projects (“Grant Agreement”).  Legal Aid shall abide by all requirements and 

obligations imposed on the City under the Grant Agreement. This includes, but is not limited to, Legal 

Aid abiding by all federal requirements; conditions of payment; reports; audits; prior written 

approvals; termination; and, all requirements in the Requirements for Federally Funded Projects.  If 

the Grant Agreement is terminated for any reason, this Contract and the Contract Documents will also 

be terminated unless agreed in writing by the City and Legal Aid to be extended Legal Aid will also. 

Provide any additional activity information or statistics that may be requested by the City 

or to comply with ARPA. 

 

 

SECTION 5 – REMEDIES 

 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any and all legal action 

necessary to enforce the Agreement will be held in Palm Beach County, Florida.  No remedy herein 

conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such 

remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or 

hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. 

  



 

 

3 

  

SECTION 6 – WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL AND ENFORCEMENT COSTS 

 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE 

RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A 

TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of the Agreement, or 

because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions 

of the Agreement, the parties agree that each party shall be responsible for its own attorney’s fees. 

 

SECTION 7 - AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE 

 Legal Aid hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses 

and approvals required to conduct its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business 

activities in a reputable manner and in accordance with applicable law.  Proof of such licenses and 

approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request. 

 

 

SECTION 8 – SEVERABILITY 

 If any term or provision of the Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement, 

or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which 

it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of the 

Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law. 

 

 

SECTION 9 - PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

 As provided in Sections 287.132-133, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, by 

entering into the Agreement, Legal Aid certifies that it, its affiliates, suppliers, subcontractors and any 

other entity who will perform hereunder, have not been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained 

by the State of Florida Department of Management Services within the thirty-six (36) months 

immediately preceding the date hereof. 

 

 

SECTION 10 - ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 
 The City and Legal Aid agree that this Agreement sets forth the entire contract between the 

parties with respect to the Scope of Services described in Section 1, and that there are no promises or 

understandings other than those stated herein.  None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained 

in this Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written 

instrument executed by the parties hereto. 

 

 

SECTION 11 – WAIVER 

 Failure of either party to enforce or exercise any right(s) under the Agreement shall not be 

deemed a waiver of either party’s right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any time thereafter. 

 

 

SECTION 12 – COMPLIANCE 
 Each of the parties agrees to perform its obligations under the Agreement in conformance with 

all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of the 



 

 

4 

  

Agreement.  In the event that either party becomes aware of a possible violation of law, regulation 

or administrative instruction that might affect the validity or legality of the services provided under 

the Agreement, such party shall immediately notify the other party and the parties shall agree on  

appropriate corrective action.  In the event either party becomes aware that any investigation or 

proceeding has been initiated with respect to any of the services provided hereunder, such party shall 

immediately notify the other party. 

 

SECTION 13 – EFFECTIVENESS, COUNTERPARTS AND PALM BEACH COUNTY IG 

 This Agreement shall not become effective until approved by the City Commission.  This 

Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

and will become effective and binding upon the parties as of the effective date at such time as all the 

signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement. 

 

 This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 

an original, and will become effective and binding on the City and Legal Aid at such time as both 

have executed a counterpart of this Agreement. 

 

 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, this Agreement may be 

subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  Legal Aid should 

review Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 in order to be aware of its rights and/or 

obligations under such ordinance and as applicable. 

 

SECTION 14 – INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 No relationship of employer or employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood 

that Legal Aid will act hereunder as an independent contractors and none of the Legal Aid’s, officers, 

directors, employees, representatives or agents performing services for Legal Aid pursuant to this 

Agreement shall have any claim against the City for compensation of any kind under this 

Agreement.  The relationship between the City and Legal Aid is that of independent entities, and 

neither shall be considered a joint venturer, partner, employee, agent, representative or other 

relationship of the other for any purpose expressly or by implication. 

 

SECTION 15 –INVOICING 

 Legal Aid shall render monthly invoices to the City for services that have been rendered in 

conformity with this Agreement in the previous month.  Invoices shall be submitted by the 10th day 

of the Month.  Invoices will normally be paid within thirty (30) days following the City’s receipt of 

Legal Aid’s invoice. 

 

 All invoices must be submitted to the Financial Services Department, 7 North Dixie Highway, 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460, on a monthly basis for review and approval prior to payment.  

Invoices should be itemized to specifically and concisely identify each task performed and should 

reflect the actual time spent on each task. 

 

 

SECTION 16 - INSURANCE 

 The Legal Aid shall maintain during the term of this Agreement all insurance coverage as 

required hereunder.  Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the United States Treasury or 

insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who must have 



 

 

5 

  

a rating of no less than “excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed upon by the City and the 

Legal Aid. 

 

 

Type of Coverage Amount of Coverage 

 

Professional liability/ 

Errors and Omissions $300,000 annual aggregate 

 

Commercial General Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence 

$2,000,000 aggregate 

 

 

Automobile Liability (optional /per case basis) $1,000,000 combined Single Limit 

 

Workers’ Compensation  Must be in accordance with State and Federal 

  Laws (no minimum amount) 

 

Proof of all insurance coverage shall be furnished to the City by way of an endorsement to same or 

certificate of insurance upon request by the City.  The City shall be identified as an “Additional 

Insured” on general and auto liability.  Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not 

relieve Legal Aid of its liability and obligations under this Agreement. 

 

 

SECTION 17 – E-VERIFY 
  Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, Legal Aid 

shall: 

 

a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all 

newly hired employees and require all subcontractor (providing services or receiving 

funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify 

the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ newly hired employees; 

b. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding 

under this Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or 

subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida 

Statutes; 

c. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and 

provide the same to the City upon request; 

d. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, 

Florida Statutes;  

e. Be aware that a violation of section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized Aliens; 

Employment Prohibited), shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

f. Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), 

Florida Statutes, Legal Aid may not be awarded a contract for at least one (1) year after 

the date on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs 

incurred by the City as a result of the termination of the Agreement. 

 

 



 

 

6 

  

SECTION 18 – SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 
a. Legal Aid certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies 

that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 

287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole  

option if Legal Aid or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false 

certification; or if Legal Aid or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized 

Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term 

of this Agreement. 

b. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, Legal Aid certifies that it and its 

subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, 

Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or 

engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida 

Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may immediately terminate this  

Agreement at its sole option if Legal Aid, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 

submitted a false certification; or if Legal Aid or any of its subcontractors are placed on 

the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with 

Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with 

business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

c. Legal Aid agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered 

into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

d. Legal Aid agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon 

by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

e. Legal Aid agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 

certification herein, Legal Aid shall immediately notify the City of the same. 

f. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to 

authorize the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 

SECTION 19 – PUBLIC RECORDS 

 Legal Aid shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and, 

if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 119.011(2), Florida 

Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 

b. Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City 

with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within 

a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 

Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 

records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the 

duration of this Agreement and following completion of this Agreement if the Legal Aid 

does not transfer the records to the City. 

 

d. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in 

possession of Legal Aid or keep and maintain public records required by the City to 

perform the service. If Legal Aid transfers all public records to the City upon completion 

of the Agreement, Legal Aid shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt 



 

 

7 

  

or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Legal Aid 

keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, Legal Aid shall  
 

meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 

electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of 

public records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information 

technology systems of the City.  

 

IF LEGAL AID HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 

FLORIDA STATUTES, TO LEGAL AID'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 

RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 

RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT (561) 586-1660, cityclerk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov, or 7 North 

Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Sub-Grant Agreement to be 

executed as of the day and year set forth above. 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 

 

By: ____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL 

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY SUFFICIENCY 

 

 

By: _____________________________ By: ____________________________________ 

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

 

 
LEGAL AID SOCIETY OF PALM BEACH 

COUNTY, INC. 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

Robert A. Bertisch, Executive Director 

[Corporate Seal] 

 



 

 

 

2021 TENANT LEGAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  

SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES 

 

The Tenant Legal Assistance Program is designed to respond to the housing crisis created by the 

COVID-19 Pandemic.  For  many  property  owners  and  tenants,  the COVID-19 Pandemic has 

impacted the tenants’ ability to keep up with their rental payments and landlords  have  been  left  without  

necessary  income  to  sustain  their  investments. 

 

Legal Aid Society of Palm Beach County will perform the following services:  

 

 Provide a dedicated phone intake extension and hotline for residents of Lake Worth Beach who 

have landlord tenant matters and are facing eviction.   

 Provide advice and counsel to tenants who have questions regarding their rights as a tenant.  

 Provide pro se assistance to tenants who need assistance preparing an Answer, Motion to Dismiss 

and/or Motion to Determine Rent.  

 Provide legal representation to tenants who have been served with a Summons and Eviction 

Complaint.  Legal representation will include drafting of an Answer, Motion to Dismiss, Motion 

to Determine Rent and related pleadings to defend the Eviction lawsuit.  Staff will provide 

representation at all hearings, case management conferences and mediations.  

 Assist tenants with access to rental assistance programs.  

 

The Goals of our services will be to:  

 Preempt nonpayment of rent issues directly related to the COVID-19 Pandemic from going to 

Eviction Court.  

 Reduce damage to tenant’s rental history and credit by intervening before a lawsuit is initiated.  

 Create a cooperative relationship between landlord and tenant.  

 Give landlords and tenants structured communication channels to discuss non-payment of rent 

issues with the goal of achieving an amicable settlement between the parties. 

 

 

Legal Aid Society of Palm Beach County will assist clients who meet the following criteria with legal 

assistance to prevent homelessness: 

 

 Reside within the city limits of Lake Worth Beach (zip codes 33460 and 33461); 

 Meet gross annual incomes at or below eighty percent (80%) AMI limits prior to COVID-19; 

 Provide documentation to evidence eligibility for unemployment, have experienced a reduction 

of household income, incurred significant costs, or experienced financial hardship due to 

COVID-19 that contributed to the missed rental payments; 

 Or in the alternative, provide documentation that the tenant has been indirectly financially 

impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

Number Served:  Up to 75 Unduplicated Clients 

 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Water Utility 

TITLE: 

Interlocal Agreement between Palm Beach County and City of Lake Worth Beach for utility 
adjustments for the 6th Ave South over Lake Osborne Drive Roadway project 

 
SUMMARY: 

Interlocal Agreement authorizes joint participation and project funding between Palm Beach 
County and City of Lake Worth Beach for the construction of utility adjustments for 6th Ave South 
over Lake Osborne Drive Project for a total cost of $149,956.76. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Palm Beach County has designed a roadway with drainage improvements as well as a 
replacement bridge on 6th Ave S between Congress Ave and Grove Street.  Several of the 
drainage and roadway improvement will be in conflict with existing water distribution mains that 
are owned by the City but located in the County right of ways.  These mains must be relocated 
to allow for the construction of the road improvements.  The City staff prepared a relocation plan 
along with a bid item list and County included this information with their advertisement for 
construction bid.    

The County received three bids for the project with Ranger Construction Industries, Inc as the 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder.  Ranger Construction bid the City work at total of 
$115,351.35.  The project has a 30% contingency value of $34,605.41 that will be available for 
unforeseen conditions or minor utility changes.  The total, not to exceed value of the interlocal 
agreement is $149,965.76.  City must reimburse the County within 30 days of the submission 
of an invoice for completed utility work.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Interlocal Agreement between Palm Beach County and City of 
Lake Worth Beach for utility adjustments for the 6th Ave South over Lake Osborne Drive 
Roadway project for a total cost of $149,965.76. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Interlocal Agreement (the Bid Tabulation referenced as Exhibit A is available upon request) 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 $149,956.76 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 $149,956.76 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

422-7034-
533.63-60 

Improve 
other than 
build - Main 

TBD TBD TBD  $149,956.76  

        

 



























EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Agreement with NZ Consultants for planning, zoning and historic preservation professional 
services 

 
SUMMARY: 

Through a competitive bid process, NZ Consultants is being recommended to provide continuing 
services regarding professional planning, zoning and historic preservation as needed for a 
period of three (3) years with two (2) additional one (1) year extensions beginning in Fiscal Year 
2022 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Through RFP21-207, the Community Sustainably and the Financial Services Department 
requested proposals from qualified firms to provide professional planning, zoning and historic 
preservation services.  It is the intention of the City to enter into a long-term agreement for these 
services for three (3) years initially and with two (2) possible one (1) year extensions 

The purpose of the agreement is to provide professional services to augment the current 
planning, zoning and historic preservation staff capacity and resources as needed.  Special 
projects under consideration are neighborhood planning, comprehensive plan updates as well 
as general planning services should project demands warrant additional resources. 

The City received 5 responses on July 14, 2021.  The Evaluation Committee comprised of 
management representatives from Community Sustainability evaluated the 5 proposals.  The 
proposal from NZ Consultants was the highest scoring responsive and responsible respondent 
and is being recommended for an award.  The agreement will commence on October 1, 2021, 
if approved, and will cover services to be provided during Fiscal Year 2022.  Expenditures for 
future fiscal years will be presented to the commission for approval. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement with NZ Consultants for professional planning, 
zoning and historic preservation services for Fiscal Year 2022 with an annual cost not to exceed 
$75,000 annually. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis  
Agreement 
Review Matrix 
RFP21-207 
 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $75,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $75,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:  Funding for the agreement 
is being proposed as part of the FY 2022 budget year.  At present, $50,000 is being requested 
to support the Planning & Preservation Division’s Professional Services account.  The 
agreement would allow for an additional $25,000 of funding for the professional services should 
additional services be needed and the additional funds were to become available from other 
sources 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Proposed 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

001-2030-
515.31-90 

Professional 
Services 

 $50,000   Up to $75,000 -$25,000 
from other 
sources, if 
needed 

        

 

























RANKED: 2 1 3 4

Weight SCHMIDT NICHOLS NZ CONSULTANTS INC. SEPI ENGINEERING AND 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. PaleoWest, LLC

1

Responsiveness to RFP
1. Comprehensiveness of proposal (up to 5 points) 
2. Completeness of proposal (up to 5 points)

10 27 30 25 25

2

Cost Effectiveness
1. Hourly rate schedule provided for all services and acceptable to 
the City (up to 25 points) 25 63 70 55 55

3

Successful Experience and Qualification  of Firm & Staff              
1. Experience and successful contracts/projects with similar sized 
cities/public entities in State of Florida (up to 5 points)
2. Staff qualifications and subject knowledge (up to 10 points)
3. Evidence of experience and skill in planning, zoning and historic 
preservation (up to 15 points)
4. Evidence of availability to deliver in the timeline required in 
solicitation (up to 5 points) 
              

35 79 99 81 71

4

Similar Projects and References
1. Prior experience with three (3) similar projects, preferably 
government entities in the State of Florida (up to 15 points)
2. References from at least (3) entities for similar projects or work 
(up to 15 points)

25 65 75 70 58

5

Default, Termination, Litigation, Debarment, etc.
1. Instances of a default under a similar project or contract;
2. Instances of litigation related to a similar project or contract;
3. Instances of any debarment by a local, state or federal 
governmental entity                                                                      (No 
instances of default and litigations scores maximum points of 5, 
provided instances shall be evaluated and scored accordingly )

5 15 15 15 15

249 289 246 224

SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED
SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED
SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED
SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED
SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED
SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED

Exhibit "G" - Scrutinized Companies Certification SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED
default, termination, litigation statement SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED SUBMITTED

Exhibit "F" - Drug Free Workplace Form
Exhibit "E" - References

Exhibit "B" - City 's Campaign Contribution Statement

Exhibit "D" - Similar Projects

         City of Lake Worth Beach 
                 Evaluation Matrix

Evaluation Criteria Score Sheet:

Total Points Received:  

RFP 21-207   PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Exhibit "C" - Respondent Information Form

Letter Of Transmittal 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 7, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Amendments to contracts for building division inspections, plan review, code enforcement 
inspections and building services with C.A.P Government and Hy-Byrd Inc. 

 
SUMMARY: 

These contract amendments will provide for professional support services for construction plan 
review, building inspections, code enforcement inspections and building official services on an 
as needed basis for Fiscal Year 2022 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Through a competitive procurement process as advertised under Request for Proposals (RFP) 
No. 18-217, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Beach solicited proposals from qualified firms or 
individuals to provide building inspections, plan review, code enforcement inspections and 
building official services. Five proposals were received and of the five, the top three ranked firms 
originally were awarded contracts. The professional services will provide for on an as needed 
basis field inspections, review of plans for code compliance in the discipline of building, 
electrical, mechanical and plumbing and building official services. 

These are the first amendments for a one-year term for two of the original contracts approved 
by the Commission on October 16, 2018. Amendments are for an expenditure of no more than 
$75,000.00 for each contractor during the Fiscal Year 2022.  The third awarded contract’s firm 
was acquired by another firm, and the City is not able to award that firm an additional year of 
services under the former firm’s name. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove contracts with C.A.P. Government Inc. and Hy-Byrd Inc. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Signed amendments 
Fiscal Impact Analysis 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $150,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $150,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

The FY 2022 budget request for professional services includes $150,000.00 for outside 
consultants to provide services to the building division. 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

103-2020-
515.31-90 

Professional 
Services 
Other 

 $150,000.00 $150,000.00  Up to 
$150,000.00 
or up to $75, 
000.00 for 
each 
consultant 

$0.00 

        

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Building Inspection, Plan Review, Code Enforcement Inspections and Building Officials 

Services 
 

 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) to the Professional Services Agreement for 
Building Inspection, Plan Review, Code Enforcement Inspections and Building Officials Services 
(“Amendment”) is made as of _________________, 2021, by and between the City of Lake 
Worth Beach, Florida, a Florida municipal corporation (“CITY”) and C.A.P Government, Inc., 
a Florida Corporation (“CONSULTANT”). 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2018 after a competitive selection process under RFP 18-217, 
the CITY and CONSULTANT entered into a Professional Services Agreement for 
CONSULTANT to provide Building Inspection, Plan Review, Code Enforcement Inspections and 
Building Officials Services to the CITY (“Agreement”);   

 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was for three (3) years with one (1) additional 

year renewal; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and the CONSULTANT desire to amend the Agreement for an 

additional year commencing October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY finds amending the Agreement as set forth herein is in the best 

interest of the CITY and serves a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each party hereto, the CITY and the 
CONSULTANT agree to amend the Agreement, as follows: 
 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
2. Term of Agreement. The CITY and the CONSULTANT agree the term of the 

Agreement is hereby extended to September 30, 2022. 
 

          3. Scrutinized Companies. 
 
3.1 CONSULTANT certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 
287.135, Florida Statutes, the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option 
if the CONSULTANT or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; 
or if the CONSULTANT or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies 
that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 
 
3.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONSULTANT certifies that it 
and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in 



Page 2 of 4 
 

business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant 
to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the 
CONSULTANT, or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or 
if the CONSULTANT or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 
Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term 
of this Agreement. 
 
3.3 The CONSULTANT agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 
 
3.4 The CONSULTANT agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and 
relied upon by the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 
 
3.5 The CONSULTANT agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards 
to any certification herein, the CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 
 
3.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize 
the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
4. Entire Agreement. The CITY and the CONSULTANT agree that the Agreement 

and this Amendment set forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no 
promises or understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and 
conditions contained in this Amendment may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise 
altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto. All other terms and conditions 
of the Agreement (except as amended herein) remain in full force and effect. 

 
 5. Counterparts. This Amendment may be simultaneously executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. Either or both parties may sign this Amendment via facsimile, email or 
electronically and such signature is as valid as the original signature of such party. 
 
          6. E-Verify. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 
2021, the CONSULTANT shall: 

a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all 
newly hired employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under 
this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status 
of all the subcontractors’ newly hired employees; 

b. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding 
under this Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract 
with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

c. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and 
provide the same to the CITY upon request; 

d. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, 
Florida Statutes;  



Page 3 of 4 
 

e. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; 
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

f. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), 
Florida Statutes, the CONSULTANT may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date 
on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY 
as a result of the termination of the Agreement. 
  













EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Public Works / Finance 

TITLE: 

LWB Fleet Facility – Updated Funding 

 
SUMMARY: 

In light of the current market, the cost of construction has steadily increased due to multiple 
factors. Therefore, the multicomponent project funding originally structured in 2020 needed to 
be reevaluated and slightly modified.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Public Works Department’s existing Fleet Facility is 58 years old and beyond its useful life.  
On January 7, 2020, the City accepted proposals from qualified firms for the assessment, 
design, bidding, and construction administration services. ACAI Associates was the selected 
firm based on the Selection Committee’s review of the submitted proposals and presentations.   

On 12/15/20, Public Works brought forth an agenda item to the Commission for a Professional 
Services Agreement with ACAI Associates authorizing the consultant to proceed with 
architectural, civil, LEED design, and Construction Administration Services for the Public Works 
Fleet Facility at a cost not to exceed $780,768.00.   

The original project was budgeted for $4.5 million consisting of $3.0 million from the shared 
Utility (Electric and Water/Sewer) and $1.5 million from sales tax. While progressing through the 
design process, it has become evident that this initial budget from almost two years ago will not 
be sufficient in today’s construction market; even after reducing the original building scope. As 
a solution, staff is recommending to match the $1.5 million from sales tax dollars with $1.5 million 
from the Refuse enterprise fund balance, bringing the new total project budget to $6.0 million. 
Just as with the Electric, Water, and Sewer departments, Fleet Services also operates out of 
the City Garage and maintains heavy equipment in the Refuse department. This is our 
justification for the Refuse Fund’s participation in the new facility project. Using funds from the 
Refuse department will not necessitate a rate increase in the near term.  

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove supplementing the project budget with $1.5 million from the Refuse 
enterprise fund balance. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Explanation of Construction Inflation 
 





















EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 9, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 
Ordinance No. 2021-12 – First Reading -- providing authority for the issuance of taxable pension 
obligation bonds 

 
SUMMARY: 

The ordinance will provide the authority for the issuance of taxable pension obligation bonds to 
reduce the total unfunded liability within the City’s three pensions. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach operates three single-employer pension plans. On a combined 
basis, the City’s annual contribution to the pensions is nearly $12 million, or roughly 10% of the 
City’s total budget. The total unfunded liability is roughly $80 million. The City’s financial advisors 
and independent actuary have identified four (4) possible strategies to manage these plans.  
Three of these, strategies 2-4, are intended to increase the plans funding ratios to 80% and 
above over a period of time.  However, the fourth strategy, the issuance of Pension Obligation, 
is the only solution that has an immediate funding ratio impact. 

 Strategy 1: Continue with the current pension fund strategy 

 Strategy 2: Make changes to the benefit plans 

 Strategy 3: Shorten the amortization period of the unfunded liability 

 Strategy 4: Issue taxable Pension Funding Bonds (PFB’s) 

The PFB’s are a potentially favorable solution because the strategy increases the plans funding 
ratios and improving Net Present Value budgetary cash flows.  

 
MOTION: 
Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2021-12 on first reading and schedule the second 
reading and public hearing for September 21, 2021. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact/Comparative Analysis 
Ordinance No. 2021-12 



FISCAL IMPACT/COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Summary of Fiscal Impact/Comparative: 

 
 Funding 

Estimate 
2022 

Funding 
Estimate 
2023 

Funding 
Estimate 
2024 

Funding 
Estimate 
2025 

Funding 
Estimate 
2026 

Current 
Plan 

$11,470,320 $13,190,868 $15,169,498 $17,444,923 $20,061,661 

Option II $9,170,320 $10,860,868 $12,869,498 $15,144,923 $17,761,661 

Option III $6,470,320 $8,190,868 $10,169,498 $12,444,923 $15,061,661 

      

Savings 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 

Current 
Plan 

$11,470,320 $13,190,868 $15,169,498 $17,444,923 $20,061,661 

Option II $9,170,320 $10,860,868 $12,869,498 $15,144,923 $17,761,661 

Option III $6,470,320 $8,190,868 $10,169,498 $12,444,923 $15,061,661 

 



2021-12 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE INCURRENCE BY THE 
CITY OF DEBT TO FUND REQUIRED CITY FINANCIAL 
OBLIGATIONS WITH RESPECT TO ITS RETIREMENT PLAN 
FOR EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING THAT SUCH OBLIGATIONS 
OF THE CITY DO NOT CREATE A GENERAL DEBT OR 
OBLIGATION OF THE CITY OR THE STATE BUT SHALL BE 
PAYABLE FROM LEGALLY AVAILABLE REVENUES 
APPROPRIATED FOR SUCH PURPOSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission (the “Commission”) of the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, Florida (the “City”) desires to consider a financing plan to provide for the funding 
of required City obligations with respect to its retirement plan for employees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission hereby deems such financing to be for an essential 

public purpose and to constitute a “project” within the meaning of Section 166.111, Florida 
Statutes, as amended; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA that: 
 

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS.  When used in this ordinance, the following terms shall have 
the following meanings, unless the context clearly otherwise requires: 

 
“City” shall mean the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation 

and public body corporate and politic. 
 
“Non-Ad Valorem Revenues” shall mean legally available revenues of the City 

derived from sources other than ad valorem taxation. 
 
“Obligations” shall mean debt obligations issued by the City, the proceeds from the 

sale of which shall be used to finance the Project. 
 
“Project” shall mean the funding of amounts to be held for the benefit of obligees 

under the City's defined benefit retirement plan for employees.  
 
The words “herein”, “hereunder”, “hereby”, “hereto, “hereof”, and any similar terms 

shall refer to this ordinance. 
 
Words importing the singular number include the plural number, and vice-versa. 
 



Pg. 2, Ord.2021-12 
 

SECTION 2. FINDINGS. The City Commission of the City hereby finds and determines 
that: 

(a) The City's defined benefit retirement plan (the "Plan") currently experiences 
certain deficits in amounts needed in the future to fully fund said Plan. 

 
(b) It is vital to the employees of the City and its citizens that said Plan be fully 

solvent, in order to continue to attract qualified employees and provide basic city services 
to citizens. 

 
(c) The City desires to incur short-term Obligations to provide funding to the 

Plan as a “Project” vital to the needs of citizens of the City. 
 
SECTION 3. ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS.  (a) The City Commission shall 
have the power, and it is hereby authorized to provide by resolution, to incur 
Obligations to finance the Project.  The proceeds from the Obligations shall be 
used to finance the cost of the Project, establish a debt service reserve fund, if 
needed, pay interest on the Obligations and pay costs of issuance. 
 

(b) The Obligations shall be payable from payments made under a 
covenant to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the City, 
moneys in certain funds and accounts held by the City and moneys derived from 
any credit enhancement of the Obligations.  The Obligations shall not constitute a 
direct obligation of the City and shall be payable solely from the Non-Ad Valorem 
Revenues budgeted and appropriated as provided herein. 
 
SECTION 4.  OBLIGATIONS NOT DEBT OF CITY.  Obligations issued under the 
provisions of any resolution shall not be deemed to constitute a debt of the City or 
a pledge of the faith and credit of the City, but such Obligations shall be payable 
solely from Non-Ad Valorem Revenues as described herein.  The obligation of the 
City to repay such Obligations is a limited and special obligation, subject to annual 
appropriation of the City from Non-Ad Valorem Revenues. 
 
SECTION 5.  REMEDIES OF OBLIGATION HOLDERS.  Any holder of 
Obligations, except to the extent the rights herein given may be restricted by the 
resolution authorizing the issuance of such Obligations, may, either at law or in 
equity, by suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding, protect and enforce any 
and all rights under the laws of the State or granted hereunder or under such 
resolution, and may enforce and compel the performance of all duties required by 
such resolution to be performed by the City or by any officer thereto. 
 
SECTION 6.  ALTERNATIVE METHOD.  This ordinance shall be deemed to 
provide an additional and alternative method for the doing of the things authorized 
hereby, shall be regarded as supplemental and additional to powers conferred by 
other laws, and shall not be regarded as in derogation of any powers now existing 
or which may hereafter come into existence.  This ordinance, being necessary for 



Pg. 3, Ord.2021-12 
 

 
 

the welfare of the inhabitants of the City, shall be liberally construed to affect the 
purposes thereof. 
 

SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its 
enactment. 

 
The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 

Commissioner________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being 
put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
Mayor Betty Resch 
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Christopher McVoy 
Commissioner Kim Stokes 
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 

9th day of September, 2021. 
 
 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by Commissioner 

________________, seconded by Commissioner _________________, and upon being 
put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
Mayor Betty Resch 
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Christopher McVoy 
Commissioner Kim Stokes 
 
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed and enacted on the 

______ day of _________, 2021. 
 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 

By: __________________________ 
Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

 AGENDA 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Work Session - August 2, 2021 

B. Regular Meeting - August 3, 2021 

C. Regular Meeting - August 17, 2021 

D. Work Session - August 19, 2021 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Resolution No. XX-2021 - Authorize FY 2022 State Aid to Libraries Application 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Ordinance No. 2021-12 – Second Reading -- providing authority for the issuance of 
taxable pension obligation bonds 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Ordinance No. 2021-XX – First Reading - to update the City’s Procurement Code and 
set the second reading and public hearing for September 7, 2021 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

ADJOURNMENT: 


	Top
	A.	071321 WS minutes
	071321 WS minutes

	B.	072021 SM minutes
	072021 SM minutes

	C.	072021 RM minutes
	072021 RM minutes

	D.	072721 WS minutes
	072721 WS minutes

	E.	072921 BWS3 minutes
	072921 BWS3 Minutes

	A.	Resolution No. 57-2021 – Second Operating Budget Amendment for FY 2021
	Budget Amendment Staff Report
	Resolution 57-2021
	Exhibit A

	B.	FY2020 Invoice Payments
	FY2020 Invoices  staff report
	FY2020 Invoices

	C.	Accept and Approve the Competitive Selection Audit Report
	Selection Audit Staff Report

	D.	Proclamation declaring September 17-23, 2021 as Constitution Week
	Constitution Week Proclamation

	E.	Easement Dedication 302 N Lakeside Dr
	Easement Dedication Staff Report
	Easement dedication
	Easement consent
	Map

	F.	Ratification of an appointment to the CRA
	CRA Appointment Staff Report
	Shamsi-Basha application
	CRA Membership Log

	A.	Ordinance No. 2021-11 - changing the election qualifying dates
	Qualifying Dates Staff Report
	SOE letter
	Ordinance 2021-11

	A.	Agreement with Legal Aid
	Legal Aid Staff Report
	Agreement
	Exhibit A

	A.	Interlocal Agreement with Palm Beach County
	PBC Interlocal Agreement Staff Report
	Interlocal Agreement

	B.	Agreement with NZ Consultants
	NZ Consultants Staff Report
	Agreement
	Evaluation Matrix

	C.	Amendments to Contracts for Building Division Contractual Services
	Staff Report.Building Services
	CAP Contract
	HyByrd Contract

	D.	LWB Fleet Facility - Updated Funding
	Fleet Facility Funding Staff Report
	Fiscal Impact Analysis
	Explanation of Construction Inflation

	F.	Ordinance No. 2021-12 – providing authority for the issuance of taxable pension obligation bonds
	Pension Obligation Bond Staff Report
	Ordinance 2021-12

	A.	Draft Agenda - September 21, 2021
	Draft Agenda - September 21, 2021

	Bottom

